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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Silvan Innovation Labs Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 | its Profit
including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
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context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

[f, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act,
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and
the Statement Of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;
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¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31,2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rules 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and as
represented by the management:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its
financial position.

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)

El
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or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) Management has represented to us that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us
to believe that the representation given by the management under paragraph (2) (h)
(iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For JAIN NIKHIL N & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Fim@;gistmtion no. 155926wW
(.

Nikhil N Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 116643

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 24, 2023
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SILVAN INNOVATION LABS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

1) a)

b)

d)

€)

2) a)

b)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment on the basis of
available information;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets on the basis of available information.;

As explained to us, Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable, having
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such physical verification.;

According to the information and explanations given to us the Company does not own
any immovable properties, Further, immovable properties which are taken on lease, the
lease agreements are duly executed by the Company;

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or
both during the year;

According to information & explanations and representation given to us by the
management, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder;

As explained to us and on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of the inventories have been conducted at reasonable intervals by
the management and having regard to the size and nature of business of the Company and
nature of its inventory, the coverage and procedures of such verification by the
management is appropriate. As explained to us and on the basis of the records examined
by us, the value of the discrepancies noticed on physical verification by management
were not material and did not exceed 10% or more in aggregate of each class of
inventory. ;

As per the books of accounts and records examined by us, no working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis
of security of current assets has been sanctioned. Therefore, clause (ii) (b) of Paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable to the Company;
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6)

7)

8)

9)
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The Company has not made any investments in or any guarantee or security provided or any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, hence clause (iii) of Paragraph
3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section 185 of the Act accordingly provisions of Section 186 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company during the year;

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
within the meaning of provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the
Act and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is
not applicable to the Company;

To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of Section 148 of the Act in
respect of the activities undertaken by the Company;

[n respect of Statutory dues :

a) According to the records of the Company examined by us, undisputed statutory dues
including Goods and Service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues have been generally regularly
deposited with appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues,
which were outstanding as on March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authority
on account of any dispute;

According to the information and explanations given to us and representation given to us by
the management, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that
have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961);

a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings from any banks, financial
institutions and Government. The Company has taken short term loan from the holding
company where there is no default. Hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is
not applicable;

b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority or other lender;
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c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given and records
examined by us, the money raised by way of short term loans from holding company
have been applied, prima facie, for the purpose for which they were obtained;

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed
by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we
report that, prima facie, no funds raised on short-term basis have been used during the
year for long-term purposes by the Company;

e) Since the company does not have any subsidiary, associates or joint ventures, this clause
is not applicable to the Company.

f) Since the company does not have any subsidiary, associates or joint ventures, this clause
is not applicable to the Company.

10) a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and hence clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company;

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the
basis of our audit procedures, the Company has complied with requirements of section 42
of the Act with respect to issue of convertible debentures on private placement basis and
the funds raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.
Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares however has issued
compulsorily convertible debentures during the previous year for which the requirement
prescribed under the Companies Act have been complied with. The funds raised were
applied for the purpose for which it was raised,

11) a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
view of the financial statements and as per information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report;

c) Asrepresented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year;

12) Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of
the Order are not applicable to the Company;
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act and their details
have been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting
standards;

a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal audit
system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companies Act 2013;

b) Since the Company does not required to have an internal audit system, the provisions of
clause (xiv) sub clause (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him as
referred to in Section 192 of the Act;

a) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us and on
the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking
Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per the Reserve bank of India
Act 1934;

c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India;:

d) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
Group has no Core Investment Company (CIC);

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 3,973.44 thousands in the current financial year
and also of Rs. 60,564.75 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore, provisions
of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, continuous financial
support from holding company, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
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sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due;

20) Since the Company has incurred losses, the Company is not required to contribute towards
CSR activities under section 135 of the Act and accordingly clause (xx) of Paragraph 3 of the
Order is not applicable to the Company;

21)  According to information and explanations given to us, Company is not required to prepare
the consolidated financial statement under sub section 3 of section 129 of the Act. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xxi) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For JAIN NIKHIL N & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 155926 W

s
NikhilN Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 116643

UDIN ;23643 Qo % TeN o2y~

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 24, 2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SILVAN INNOVATION LABS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial over financial
reporting of SILVAN INNOVATION LABS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of
March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT”). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAT and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
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financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To These
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company ; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With
Reference To These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
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In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For JAIN NIKHIL N & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 155926W

Nikhil N Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 116643

UDIN  : 2206643 RE-XTeN 702

Place : Mumbai
Date : April 24, 2023
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Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Balance sheet as at 31st March 2023

(% in D0O0)
Notes H ) Asat
D 31-Mar-2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 27278 305.01
Other intangible assets 4 69,076.52 91,885.61
Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables 5 322.27 414 91
69,671.57 92,605.53
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,010.26 5,253.89
Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables 5 503475 7.178.77
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,412.96 250,52
(c) Loans 6 " 140.00
Other current assets 9 690.14 1, 70587
Current tax assets (net) 8 1,395.10 1,128.08
9,543.21 15,656.63
Total assets 79,214.78 1,08,262.16
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 11 10,195.60 10,195.60
(b) Other equity 12 1,596.98 28,289.85
11,792.58 38,485.45
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings - .
Provisions 17A 1,203.00 6,614.00
1,203.00 6,614.00
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Borrowings 13 52,000.00 45,500.00
(b) Trade payables 14
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 165.65 2.390.39
(c) Other financial liabilities 15 4,390.82 719.89
Other current liabilities - 16 9,568.73 13,426 .43
Provisions 178 94.00 1,126.00
66,219.20 63,162.71
Total equity and liabilities 79,214.78 1,08,262.16
Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies 18&2
Contingent liabilities and commitments 27
Other notes to accounts 28 to 34
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Jain Nikhil N & Co Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN:U72900KA2008PTC046964
Firm Registration No.:155926W .
\
Nikhil N Jain Ajay Gupta
Partner Director
Membership No:116643 DIN: 09447933
Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai

Date: 24.04.2023 Date: 24.04.2023 Date: 24.04,2023



Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2023

(Z in 000)
Year ended
Notes
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Revenue from operations 18 21,582.75 22,180.74
Other income 19 11,033.93 52.32
Total income 32,616.68 22,233.06
EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 20 3,978.82 11,010.65
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress 21 4,239.66 (855.66)
Employee benefits expense 22 11,441.62 44,229.11
Finance costs 23 6,016.47 3,834.38
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 22,861.42 22,539.44
Other expenses 25 10,842.56 22,282.33
Total expenses 59,380.55 | 1,03,040.25
Profit before tax (26,763.87) (80,807.19)
Tax expenses 8

Current tax - =
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 4 =
Deferred tax (credit)/charge u @
Total tax expenses @ -
Profit/(Loss) for the period (26,763.87) (80,807.19)
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 71.00 (2,297.00)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss -

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Designated cash flow hedges 2 -
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 71.00 (2,297.00)

Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (26,692.87)| (83,104.19)
Earnings per share 26

Basic (Face value ¥100 each) (261.81) (815.10)
Diluted (Face value 2100 each) (261.81) (815.10)
Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity 26

Basic 1,01,956 1,01,956
Diluted 1,01,956 1,01,956
Corporate information and summary of significant accounting policies 1&2

Contingent liabilities and commitments 27

Other notes to accounts 28 to 34

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For Jain Nikhil N & Co Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN:U72900KA2008PTC046964

Firm Registration No.:155926W

i

Ajay Gupta
Director
DIN: 09447933

Nikhil N Jain
Partner
Membership No:116643

Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.04.2023 Date: 24.04.2023 Date: 24.04.2023



Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

A) Equity Share Capital (Refer note 11)

Balance al the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

10,195.60
10,195.60

(% in DO0)
31-Mar-22

10,195.60

10,195.60

B} Other Equity (Refer note 12)

(2 in 000}

Reserves & Surplus

Compulsorily

Compulsorily

Items of Other

Total Other Equity

Securities Premium convertible convertible Retained Earnings comprehensive
preference shares debentures income (OCIl)
As al 31 March 2021 265964 34 8,892.57 - (2,41,916.87) 384.00 33,324.04
Profitf{loss) after tax for the year - - - (80,807 .19) - (80,807.19)
ltems of OCI for the year, net of tax
Re-measurement gains / (losses) an defined benefit - E " R (2,297.00) (2.297.00)
plans
Cempulsorily convertible debentures issued during the - - 7807000 - N 78.070.00
year
As at 31 March 2022 2,65,964.34 8,892.57 78,070.00 (3,22,724.08) (1,913.00) 28,289.85
Loss after tax for the year - - - (26,763 .87) = (26,763.87)
ltems of OCI for the quarter, net of lax
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit = - - B 71.00 71.00
plans
As at 31 March 2023 2,65,964.34 8,892.57 78,070.00 [3.,49,487.93) (1,842.00) 1,596.98
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 2810 34

As per our roport of even date
For Jain Nikhil N & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:155926W

/

Nikhil N Jain
Partner
Membership No: 116643

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.04.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
CIN:U72900KA200BPTCO46964

jay Gupta
Director
DIN: 09447933

Flace: Bengaluru
Date: 24.04.2023




Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2023

(2 in 000)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2023 31-Mar-2022

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax (26,763.87) (80,807.19)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amorlisation expense 22,861 .42 22,539.44
Impairment allowance for trade receivable (net) (460.52) 434 52
Finance cost 6,016.47 3,634.38
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes 1,653.50 (53,998.85)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables and other financial assels 2,109.64 (5,330.48)
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (net) 4,243 63 1,117.25
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable, financial liabilities and provisions (12,389 54) (35,135.82)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (4,382.77) (93,347.90)
Income tax paid (net of refunds) Z 568.88
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (A) (4,382.77) (92,479.02)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets including under development (49.03) (2,490.88)
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (B) (49.03) (2,490.88)
C.CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
lssue of compulsorily convertible debentures % 78,070,00
(Repayment) / Proceeds of short term borrowings (Refer note below) 6,500.00 20,001.21
Interest and other finance cost paid (905.76) (3,114 .49)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 5,594.24 94,956.72
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,162.44 (13.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 250.52 263.72
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 1,412.96 250.52
Note on Reconciliation of movement in borrowings to cash flows from financing activities
31-Mar-2022 |
Opening Balance 45,500.00 2549879
(Repayment) / Proceeds of short term borrowings 6,500.00 20,001.21
Closing Balance 52,000.00 45,500.00

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Jain Nikhil N & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:155926W

Y

Nikhil N Jain
Partner
Membership No:116643

Ajay Gupta
Director
DIN: 09447933

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24,04.2023

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 24.04.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
CIN:U72900KA2008PTC046964

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24.04.2023



Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Corporate information

The Company (CIN: U72900KA2008PTC046964) was incorporated on June 30, 2008 to facilitate development and maintenance of business and
software applications on all popular and mainframe and minicomputer platforms and lo carry on the work of development of software and related
services in all kinds. The registered office of the Company is situated at Village Nurpura, Taluka Halol, Gujarat. Polycab India Limited has acquired
100% shareholding of the Company from existing shareholders persuant to share purchase agreement dated 18 June 2021

The Board of Direclors approved the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and authorised for issue on 24 April 2023

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

A) Basis of preparation

Statement of Compliance:

The audited financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] on accrual basis and other relevant provisions of the Act,
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule |,
applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

Basis of Measurement:

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on an accrual basis and a historical cost convention, except for
some of the financial assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value or amortised cosl at the end of each reporting year.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be
received from sell of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

Classification of Current / Non-Current Assets and Liabilities:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. It has been classified as current or
nen-current as per the Company’s normal operaling cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division |l of Schedule IIl to the Companies Act, 2013,

Operating Cycle:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(b} Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

(c) Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period; or

(d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when;

(a) Iis expecled to be seltled in normal operaling cycle;

(b) Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(c} Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%) which is the functional currency of the Company. All amounts disclosed in the financial
statements which also include the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest thousand up to two decimal places, as per the
requirement of Schedule Il| to the Companies Act 2013, unless otherwise stated.

B) Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements require to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The Company uses the following critical accounting estimates in preparation of its financial statements:




Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Vi

Revenue Recognition:

The Company applied judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts at a point in time with
customers, such as identifying performance obligations in a sales transactions. The Company allocated the portion of the transaction price to goods
hased on its relative slandalone prices, Also, certain conlracts of sale includes volume rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In respect of
long term contracts significant judgments are used in;

(a) Determining the revenue to be recognised in case of performance obligation satisfied over a period of time; revenue recognition is done by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual
cosl incurred lo-date, Lo the total estimaled cost altributable lo the perfoermance obligation

(b} Determining the expecled losses, which are recognised in the period in which such losses become probable based on the expected total contract
cosl as at the reporting date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in
depreciation expense in current and future periods.

Provisions

The Company estimates the provisions that have present obligalions as a result of past events and it is probable that outflow of resources will be
required to setlle the obligations. These provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. The timing of recognition requires application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to change.

Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Potential liabilities that are
possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabililies are disclosed in the
notes but are not recognized. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments,

Foreign Currency Transactions / Translations

Transactions in currencies other than Company’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
date of transaction. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the exchange rate
prevailing as at reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies which are carried in terms of historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items
al the exchange rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are
recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Provision for income tax and deferred tax assets

The Company uses estimates and judgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and
disallowances which is exercised while determining the provision for income tax. A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be ulilized. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized.
Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred lax asseis that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Accordingly, the Company exercises its judgement to reassess the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If an indication exists, or when the
annual impairment testing of the asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset's or Cash-generating-unit's (CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from the other assets or group of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds it recoverable amount, the asset is considered as impaired and it's written down to its recoverable amount.

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the Cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future cash flows after considering current economic
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated
cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/ CGU,

Employee benefits
The accounting of employee benefit plans in the nature of defined benefit requires the Company to use assumptions. These assumptions have been
explained under employee benefits note.

Q&."--}“‘""- )
~ ' Brpd _Z\ij/




Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

X

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant
judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the
lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not lo exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably cerlain to exercise an oplion lo extend a lease, or not
to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to
exercise the oplion to extend the lease, or nol to exercise the oplion to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change
in the non-cancellable period of a lease,

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

C) Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition
The Company applies IND AS 115 which establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers,

Measurement of Revenue

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, incentive schemes, if any, as per contracts
with customers, Transaction price is the amount of consideration fo which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring good or
service to a customer. Taxes collected from customers on behalf of Government are not treated as Revenue.

Sale of goods

Revenue from contracis with customers involving sale of products is recognized at a point in time when control of the product has been transferred
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, and there are no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvernent
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold. At contract inception, the Company assess the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer, Revenue from
contracts with customers is recognized when control of geods or services are transferred to customers and the Company retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Other income
Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, dividend income, gain on investments and exchange gain on forward contracts and on
translation of other assets and liabilities.

Interest income on financial asset measured either at amortised cost or FVTPL is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a lime basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established.

Foreign Currency
‘The Company's Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupee (3) which is also the Company's functional currency. Foreign currency
transaction are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of transaction.

Measurement of foreign currency item at the Balance sheet date:
(i) Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the reporting
date,

(i) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions.

(i) Exchange differences:
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of Profit &
Loss.
Warranty
The Company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale. These assurance-type warranties are
accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets. In certain contracts, the Company provides warranty for an
extended period of time and includes rectification of defects that existed at the time of sale and are normally bundled together with the main contract.




Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Capitalisation of costs in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and condilion necessary for il
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company. Any lrade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added lo its book value only if it increases the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond ils previously assessed standard of performance. Incomes and expenses related to the incidental operations not necessary to
bring the item to the location and the condition necessary for it lo be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company are recognized in
the Slatement of profit and loss. All other expenses on exisling property, plant and eguipment, including day-lo-day repair and maintenance
expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year in which such expenses are incurred,

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipments are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss when the asset is derecognized.

‘Capital work-in-progress comprises of property, plant and equipment that are nol ready for their intended use at the end of reporting period and are
carried at cosl comprising direct cosls, related incidental expenses, other directly attributable costs and borrowing costs.

"The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no further benefit is expected from its use and
disposal. Assets retired from active use and held for disposal are generally slated al the lower of their net book value and net realizable value. Any
gain or losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Once the assels classified as
held-for-sale, property, plant and equipment are no longer depreciated.

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment’s is calculated on pro rata basis on straight-line method using the management assessed useful lives
of the assets which is in line with the manner prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013,

‘The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively. Depreciation is not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its
intended use

‘Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cosl of the respective assel. Borrowing cost incurred for constructed assets js
capitalised up lo the date by which asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred specifically for financing the asset or the
weighted average rate of all other borrowings, if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period they occur.

Property, plant and equipment with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on
an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU} to which the asset belongs.

'If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimaled to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Transition o Ind AS: On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognised as at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and used thal carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and
equipment.

Lease

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease,
at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
through the period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any, The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

Amortisation on intangible assets is calculated on pro rata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets and in the manner
prescribed in Schedule | of the Companies Act, 2013,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of amortisation of Intangible assets are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively.

Expenditure on research and development activities is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Development expenditure is
capitalized as part of cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development
and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred, Subsequent to initial recognition, the assel is measured at cost
less accumulated ameortization and any accumulated impairment losses, if any. The research and development cost has been amortized on pro rata
basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets i.e 5 years.
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An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of Lhe asset are
recegnised in the staterment of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised,

Intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication thal their carrying amounts may nol be recoverable, If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.

Transition to Ind AS: On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its Intangible Assets recognised as
at 1 April 2020 measured as per the previous GAAP and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets,

Income taxes

Income tax expenses comprise current fax and deferred income tax and includes any adjustments related to past periods in current and / or deferred
tax adjustments that may become necessary due lo certain developments or reviews during the relevant period. Current tax is measured at the
amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961, The tax rates and tax laws used lo compute the
amounl are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively. Income tax received / receivable perains to prior period recognised when reasonable certainty arise for refund
acknowledged by the Income-tax department. Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and
taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The effect of
changes in tax rates on deferred income lax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the
substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can
be realised.

At each reporting date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax assets. It recognises unrecognized deferred tax asset to the extent that
it has become reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. The Company writes-down the carrying amount of deferred tax asset
to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred
tax asset can be realized. Any such write-down is reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be,
that sufficient future taxable income will be available.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet
after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying unit intends to settle
the asset and liability on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing
current tax and where the deferred tax assels and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws,

Inventories

Raw materials, traded goods, work in progress, finished goods and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost, Cost of raw materials, packing materials, and stores and spares is determined on a First In-
First Out (FIFO) basis and includes all applicable costs, including inward freight, incurred in bringing goods to their present location and condition.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials as aforesaid, direct labour cost
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on total manufacturing overheads to raw materials consumed.

Stock -in-trade are valued at lower of cost and or realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and includes all applicable costs, including inward
freight, incurred in bringing the inventories at their location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis,

The stocks of scrap materials have been taken at net realisable value.

Met realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimaled costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required (o settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating
to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit & Loss. If the effect of the time value of money is malerial, provisions are discounled using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost

Praovision is recognised for expected warranty claims and after sales services when the product is sold or service provided lo the customer, based on
past experience of the level of repairs and returns. Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is
revised annually, It is expected thal significant portion of these costs will be incurred in the next financial year and all will have been incurred within
warranty period after the reporling date. Assumptions used to calculate the provisions for warranties were based on current sales levels and current
information available about returns during the warranty period for all products sold.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheel date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate, If it is no longer probable that the outflow of
resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are direclly atlributable to the acquisition, construction or erection of qualifying assets are capilalised as part of cost of such
asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assels are assels which take a substantial period of
time lo get ready for their intended use or sale.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities necessary lo prepare the qualifying assets for their intended uses are
complete. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs include
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equily holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events such as fresh issue, bonus issue that have changed the number of equity shares oulstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or
converled during the year. Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of equily shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Polential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive
only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares
are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued al a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare
cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses it's existence in the Financial Statements.

Segment

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business aclivities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses,
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") lo make decisions for which discrete
financial information is available. The Company's chief operating decision maker is the Executive Director.

The Board of directors monitors the operating results of all product segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segments and geographic segments.
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Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits thal are expected to be seltled wholly within 12 months after the end of the year in
which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up lo the end of the year and are measured at the
amounts expecled to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance
sheet.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Defined contribution plan

Provident Fund: Contribution lowards provident fund is made to the regulatory authorities, where the Company has no further obligations. Such
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on
a monthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee's State Insurance Scheme: Contribution towards employees’ state insurance scheme is made lo the regulalory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a manthly basis which are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. Benefils payable to eligible employees of the Company with respect to gratuity,
a defined benefit plan is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. In accordance with the Payment of
Graluity Act, 1972, the plan provides for lump sum payments lo vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of
employment an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. The present value of such obligation is determined by
the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past service cost and fair value of plan assets as at the Balance Sheet dale through which the
obligations are to be settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or change in return of the
plan assets is recognized as an income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss, The expected return on plan assels is based on the assumed
rate of return of such assets. The Company contributes to a fund set up by Life Insurance Company of India.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlily and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

(i) Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially al fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through Statement of Profit
& Loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset, Financial assets are classified at the initial recognition as
financial assets measured at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortised cost,

(ii

—_—

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost

(b) Financial assets at fair value

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognised entirely in the Statement of Profit & Loss (i.e. fair value through
Statement of Profit & Loss), or recognised in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through other comprehensive income).

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
A financial assets that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost (net of Impairment) unless the asset is designated at fair
value through Statement of Profit & Loss under the fair value option.

(a

_

(i) Business Model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial assels to collect the contractual cash flow
(rather than to sell the instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realise its fair value changes).

(i) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flow that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(b) (i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collections contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise on specified daled to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in
the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and
is irrevocable,

If the Company decides 1o classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,

are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recagnized in the Statement of Profit &
Loss,

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is nolt classified in any of the above categories is subsequently fair valued through Statement of Profit & Loss.

(iii) Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised

(@)
(b)

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it

The Company discloses analysis of the gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss arising from the derecognition of financial
assels measured at amortised cost, showing separately gains and losses arising from derecognition of those financial assets.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model for the following:

(a)

(b}

Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 115

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables and contract assets.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking faclors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment,

The Company recognises an allowance for ECL for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECL are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECL are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has nol been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECL are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required
for credit losses expecled over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for
all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. In determining the allowances for doubtful
trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based
on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking
information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are due and allowance rates used in the
provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit
losses or at an amount equal to the 12 months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the
credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition,

The Company considers a financial assel in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Xv

As a praclical expedient, the Company uses the provision matrix to delermine impainment loss allowance on the portfolio of trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its hislorical observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and its
adjusled forward looking estimates. Al every reporting dale, the historical observed defaull rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the period is recognized as other expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss,

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include lrade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, lease
liabilities and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

(a) Financial liahilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,

(b) Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such al the initial date of recognition,
and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied, For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own
credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(c) Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate
method.

Embedded Derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate
derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related {o the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

(a) A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability
is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is trealed as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

(b

=

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amaortisation,

Cash Flow Statement

Cashflows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operating cash receipts or payments and ilem of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cashflows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and in hand, cheques in hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value and having original maturities of three
months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents, Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted
for withdrawal and usage.
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D) New and amended standards

E

The Company applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022,
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated 23 March 2022, 1o amend the
following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2022.

{i) Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable of meeling the obligations under the contract coslts (i.e., the costs that the Company cannot
avoid because it has the contract) exceed the economic benefits expecled lo be received under it.

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making, an enlity needs lo include costs that relate directly to a
contract lo provide goods or services including both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly
related to contract aclivities (e.g., depreciation of equipment used fo fulfil the contract and costs of contract management and supervision), General and
administrative costs do not relate directly lo a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

The Company applied the amendments to the contracts for which it had not fulfilled all of its obligations at the beginning of the reporting period. The
Company did not have any significant impact on the financial statements due to this amendment.

(ii) Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAl's "Framewaork for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian Accounting
Standards” with the reference to the "Conceplual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without significantly changing its
requirements.

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of polential ‘day 2' gains or
losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Conlingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or
Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately. The exceplion requires enlities to apply the criteria in Ind AS 37 or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS
37, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition date.

The amendments also add a new paragraph to IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date,

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendments prospectively, i.e., to business combinations occurring after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application).

These amendments had no impact on the standalone financial statements of the Company as there were no contingent assets, liabilities or contingent
liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during the period,

(iii) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16

The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall
not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of properly, plant, and
equipment.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022, These amendments had no impact on the standalone
financial statements of the Company as there were no sales of such items produced by property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented.

{iv) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the '10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other's behalf.

In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Company applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment (the date of initial application). These amendments had no impact
on the standalone financial statements of the Company as there were no modifications of the Company's financial instruments during the period,

Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose
financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial stalements.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on fransactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments
narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption} so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any
significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates
has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are "monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be
measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.
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Property, plant and equipment

The changes in the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:

(% in 000)
Computers Fur!'liture and foice Total
fixtures equipments

Gross carrying value (at cost)
As at 01 April 2022 2,298.13 687.31 636.34 362178
Additions - 49.03 - 4903
Disposals/Adjustments (420.44) - (137.89) (558.33)
As at 31 March 2023 1,877.69 736.34 498.46 3,112.48
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2022 2,159.97 549 52 607.28 3,316.77
Depreciation charge for the period 8.87 43.47 - 52.34
Disposals/Adjustment (398.42) - (130.99) (529.42)
As at 31 March 2023 1,770.41 592.99 476.29 2,839.70
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 107.27 143.35 2217 272,78

The changes in the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

(¥ in 000)
Furniture and Office
Gowiiters fixtures equipments ToAsd

Gross carrying value (at cost)

As at 01 April 2021 227013 730.06 975.05 3,975.24
Additions 28.00 - = 28.00
Disposals/Adjustments - (42.75) (338.71) (381.46)
As at 31 March 2022 2,298.13 687.31 636.34 3,621.78
Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2021 2,155.62 54259 924.72 3,622.92
Depreciation charge for the year 4.35 49.36 12.61 66.32
Disposals/Adjustment - (42.43) (330.05) (372.48)
As at 31 March 2022 2,159.97 549.52 607.28 3,316.77

Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2022 138.16 137.79 29.06 305.01
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Other intangible assets

The changes in the carrying value of Intangible assets for the year ended 31 Mar 2023 are as {ollows:

Gross carrying value (at cost)
As al D1 April 2022

(¥ 000)

Technology
Software

1.65.744.90
Additions
DigposalsiAdjusiments
As at 31 March 2023 1,69,744.90
Accumulated amartization
As at 01 Apnl 2022 7785829
Amaortisation charge for the year 22 80909
Disposals! Adjustments s
As at 31 March 2023 1,00,668.38
Mt carrying value
As at 31 Mareh 2023 69,076,52
The changes in the carrying value of Intangible assets for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

(#n000)
Technology
Software
Gross carrying value (at cost)
As al 01 Apnl 2021 1,63,782 02
Additions 5 D62 &8
Disposals
As at 31 March 2022 1,69,744.90
Accumulated amortization
As at 01 April 2021 55,386.16
Amortisalion charge for the year 2247313
Disposals/ Adjustments
As at 31 March 2022 77,859.28
Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2022 o 91,6885.61
. Trade receivables
(2 in DDOY

| 3ihar23  EEEIETYET

Unsecured (at amortised cost)

Non-Current

Trade receivables - Considered Good 32227 414,91
Trade receivables - Credit Impaired - -
Trade receivables ({Gross) 322.27 414.91
Less: Impairment allowance for irade recenvables - Credit Impaired = &
Non-Current Trade receivables (Net) 2227 414.91
Current

Trade recelvables - Considered Good 503475 717877
Trade receivables - Credit Impaired 112,53 2,380.85
Trade receivables {Gross) 5,147.28 9,568.62
Less: Impairment allowance for trade receivables - Credit Impaired (112.53) (2,380 85)
Current Trade recelvables (Nat) 5,034.76 7A78.77
The following lable summarizes the change in impairment allowance measured using the life time expected credit loss model:

At the beginning of year (2,389.85) (15,783.52)
Provision during the year B 2
Provision written back 227732 13,383 67
At the end of the year . (112.53) (2,389.85)

Notes:-

(a) Trade receivables are usually non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms up to 90 days The Company's term includes charging of interest for delayed payment beyond agreed credit days

Company entities charge interast for delayed paymants in certain cases depending on factors, such as, market conditions and past 1 frend

{b) The Company follows Iife time expected credit loss model, Accordingly, deterioration in credit sk is not required to be evaluated annually,

(c) Mo trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Further, no trade or other receivables are due from firms or private

companies respectively in which any directer is a paniner, a director or a member.

(d) There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same Is not disclosed in the ageing schedule as balow.
(e) Trade receivables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2023

(¥ in 00D)

Not dug _Outstanding for following periods from dus date of payment
Less than 6 month More than 6 1-2 years : More than 3 years
months to 12
months

1,396.97

(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables
- considered good
(i) Undizputed Trade Recaivables - - & . 3
- which have significant
increase in credit risk
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables -
- Credil Impaired
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - P
cansidered good
Dispuled Trade Receivables - - : . ~ _ ~
which have significant increase
in credit risk
(vi} Disputed Trade Receivables - - - = : B =
Credit Impawed

3.960.04 53570

18.00 58.80 - 3574 112,53

v

- 3,978.04
Less: Impairment allowance for rade recevables- Credit Impaired

1,396.97 58.80 - 36.74 5,469.64

(112.63)
5,357.01
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> =

==}

o

L=

As at 31 March 22
Not Due

Undisputed Trade Receivablos
considered good

{1y Undisputed Trade Recevables

- which have significant

Increase in credit sk

Undispuled Trade Receivables

- Credil Impaired

Disputed Trade Receivahles

conzidered good

{

{it)

()

v

Disputed Trade Receivables - =
which have significant increase
in credit rigk

Disputed Trade Receivables -
Credit Impaired

(vi)

Less, Impaitment allowance for rade recevables- Credit Impaired

Total trade receivahle (net)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 Maora than 6 1-2 years
months months to 12
months
2,508 21

2.3 years

508546

237323 16.63

508546 4,881.44 16.63 =

. Loans

Loans - Curent

At amortised cost
Loans to employees

Maore than 3 years

(2 In 00D)
TOTAL

/583,67

9,983,653
(2,380 85)
7,593.68

Zi m_m%

Cash and cash equivalents (at amortised cost)
Halances with banks
In current accounts

1.412.98

1,412.96

=
=
.
k

Unsecured, cansidered good - 140.00
= 140,00
. Cash and cash equivalents (¥ in 000)

280.52
250.52

Thera is no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year and prior periods,

. Income taxes

Income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss: NIL for the current year and year ended 31 March 2022

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domestic tax rate: Since the Company has incurred losses in the current year and previous financial year,

reconciliation of tax expenses is not required.

The details of Non-current/ {Current) tax assets {{liabilities) as at 31 March 2023,

Mon-current tax assets {net of provision for taxation)
Current tax asset {net of advance tax)
Net i tax asset/ (liability) at the end

1,395.10
1,395.10

112808

1,128.08

The movement in gross deferred tax assets and liabilities
For the yeer ended 31 March 2023

Deferred tax assets [ (liabilities) in relation to

Carrylng value as at
01 April 2022

Changes through
profit and loss

Changes through Carrying value as at

ocl

31 March 2023

Froperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets TE815 (3.001.94) (2,203.79)
Provision for employee benefils 201240 (1.623.30) - 388.10
Unabsorbed depreciation 30,491.47 20,263.30 - 50,754.77
Total deferred tax assets [ (liabilities) 33,302.02 16,638.07 - 48,940.09
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (¥ in DOD)
Carrying value as at Changes ti gt Changes tt gh Carrying value as at
01 April 2021 profit and loss ocl 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) in relation to
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 3,162 B4 (2,364.69) = 74815
Provision for employee benefits 1,841.94 70.46 2.012.40
Unabsorbed depreciation 5739.13 24,752 34 30,491 .47
Total deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 10,843.91 22,4581 - 33,302.02
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B, Income taxes
E Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ liabilities (net):

Met deferred tax asset { {abilly) at the baginning

Tax (incomejexpense due 1o 1ax rate change (reinstatement of Opening Balance)
Tax (incomel/expense on adjustment of tax refating 1o earlier year

Tax (income)lexpense ecogmised in poofil or loss

Tax (incomelfexpense recognised in OCI

Mot deferred tax asset / (liability) at the end

Notes:-

33,302 02

16,638 07

48,940.09

___{Fin0o0
31-Mar-22

10.843.91

As of 31 March, 2023, the Company has nel deferred tax assets of Rs 48,840 09 thousands (Previous year Rs 33,303 02 thousand) [n the absence of convincing evidences thal sufficient future 1axabla
income will be avallable against which deferied tax assets can be roalised, the same has not been recognised in the books of account in ling wath Ind - AS 12 an Income Taxes

F Tax losses and Tax credits

The Company has brought forward business losses of ¥ 1,59 144.93 (Z in 000) an which neither deferred tax credit has been recognised nor is considered for disclosure under note 80 above

9. Other assets

7 in 000
31-Mar-22

Advances other than capital advances, Unsecured, considered good
Advances for materials and services 365 28 131,08
Others
Unsecured, considered good
Prepaid expensos 18.93 10071
Balances with statutory/government authorities 164.01 1,235.21
Others 141.82 238,39
6890.14 1,705.36
10. Inventories
¥ in 000
31-Mar-23
Raw materials 16.14 2012
Finished goods 71560 4 28332
Stock-in-trade 276.51 950,45
1,010.26 5,253.89

1

. Equity Share capital

31-Mar-22

Authorised share capital
1,80,392 (previous year 1,80,392) equity shares of Rs 100 each 1803920 18030.20
3,00,000 {previous year 3,00,000) 0.1% Compulsorily convantible preference shares of Rs 10 each 3000.00 3000.00
1,451 {previous year 1,451) 0.1% Compulsorily canvertible pref shares of Rs 200 each( Class A1) 280,20 20020
4,353 (previous year 4,353) 0.1% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 200 each (Class AZ) 870,60 87060
14,000 (previous year 14,000) 0.1% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 200 each (Class A3) 2800.00 280000
25,000 (previous year 25,000) 0.1% Compulsorily converlible preference shares of Rs 200 each (Class B) 5000.00 5000.00
30000.00 30000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
1,01,956 (previous year 1,01 856) equity shares of Re. 100 each 10,195.60 10,195.60
10,196.60 10,195.60
Note:
{a) The reconciliation of shares and the of share capital as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as follow:
i R N R 31-Mar-22
Number of Shares Amount MNumber of Shares Amount
Al the beginning of the year 1.01,956.00 10,185.60 1,01,956.00 10.195.60
Add: Shares issued during the year - - - =
At the end of the year 1,01,9566.00 10,196.60 1,01,956.00 10,195.60
(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 100 per share, Each helder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company d and pays dividends in Indian

rupees. The final dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in

proportion to the number of equily shares held by the shareholders.

[c] The details of Shareholding of Pi ters and shareholders holding more than 5% shares are as under as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
31-Mar-22
Number of Shares Total share Number of Shares Taotal share
Paolycab India Limited 1.01,856.00 100.00% 1,01,856 00 100.00%
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11. Equity Share capital

() Aggregate number of bonus share issued and share issued for consideration other than cash during the period of § years immediately preceding the reporting date :
There were no buy back of shates or issue of shares pursuant to cantract without payment being received in cash during the previous 5years

{2} Dividend
The Campany has not declared any dwidend duning the year ended 31 March 2023 and duning the previous year

=
]

. Other equity (# in 00D}

31-Mar-22

Securities premium 265,564 34 2.65,0964 34
291,177 {previous year 2.91.177) 0.1% Compulsanly canvertible preference shares of Rs 10 each (Class A) 281097 281177
1,451 (previous year 1.457) 0.1% Compulsorily converlible prelerence shares of Rs 200 each{ Class A1) 249020 280,20
4,353 {previous year 4, 353) 0.1% Compulsorily converfible preference shares of Rs 700 cach (Class AZ) BYD G0 87060
13,236 (previous year 14.000) 0.1% Compulserily convertitle preference shares of Rs 200 each (Class AZ) 264720 264720
10,864 (previous year 25 000) 01% Compulsonly convertible preference shares of Rs 200 ezch (Class B) 217280 217280
0.01% Compulsarily convertible debentures 78.070 00 /8.070.00
Retained earnings (349,032 94) (3,22,340.07)
3,893.97 30,586.84

Notes:

a  Compulsorlly convertible preference shares (CCPS)
Saries A ily il shares (CCPS)

The series A comp shares shall be convirliie into fully paid equily shares at the cption of the holder at any Lme o aulomatically afller the expiry of 19 years from the dale of alistment in fhe
conversion ratio of 10,1

converlible

Series A1 pulsarlly convertible praf shares (CCPS)
The senes Al Isarily converiible pref shares shall be convertible into Tully paid equity shares at Lhe option of the holder st any ime ar automaticatly after the expiry of 19 years frem the date of allotment in the
conversion ratio of 11

Saries A2 Isarily convartible pi shares [CCPS)
The sernes AZ Isorily converbble p shares shall be canvertible into fully paid equity shares at the option of the halder at any e or avlomaticatly aller the expiry of 19 years from the dale of allatment in the
conversion ratio of 1.1

Series A3 ily convertible p shares [CCP5)

The sanes A3 ily converlible e shares shall be canverfible imto fully paid equity shares at the option of the holder at any time or automalically after the expiry of 19 years from the date of issuance in the
conversion ralio of 1:1

The helders of senes A3 prelerence shares shall be entitied 10 allend the 08 o all sharet of the and will be entified 1a such voling nghts on an as if converled bass, as may be permissible under applicable
law

Series B P ily ible pref shares (CCPS)

The seres B o Isorily convertible pi shares shall be converfible into fully paid equity shares af the oplion of 1he holder at any time or sutomatically after the expiry of 19 years fiom the date of issvance in the conversian

ratio of 1:1

The holders of senes B preference shares shall be enlilled to attend the meetings of all shareholders of the company and will be enlitied to such vating righls on an as f converled basis, as may be permissible under applicable law

Rights. pred and hed Lo p ly convertible pref shares
The company has one class af ly ible p ca shares having nominal value of Rs 10 each and four classes of pulsarily tible p & shares having nominal value of Rs 200 each
b R i of shares ing at the inning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2022
0.1% C y i shares of Rs 10 each Mumber of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
(Class A)
Ouistanding at he beginning of the year 281177 201177 281177 2891177
Add- Issued during the year = -
Oulstanding at the end of the year 23177 281177 281477 291177
0.1% Compulsorily ible pref shares of Rs 200 each MNumber of shares Amount Humber of shares Amaunt
(Class A1)
Outstanding al the beginning of the year 1.451 260 20 1,451 260.20
Add Isseed during the year - E - -
Quistanding at the end of the year 1,451 29020 1,451 28020
0.1% Compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs 200 sach Number of shares Amaunt Number of shares Amount
(Class A2)
Quistanding al the beginning of the year 4353 B70.ED 4,353 870.60
Add- Issued during the year - - - -
Oulstanding al the end of the year 4353 BY0ED 4,353 87060
0.1% Compulsorily ible pred shares of Rs 200 each Mumber of shares. Amaunt Number of shares Amount
(Class A3)
Cutstanding al the beginning of the year 13236 2.647.20 13236 264720
Add: Issued dunng the year - - - %
Quistanding al the end of the year 13,236 2,647 20 13,236 264720
0.1% C iy i shares of Rs 200 each Humber of shares. Amaunt Number of shares Amount
(Class B)
Cutstanding &l the beginning of the year 10,864 2,172.80 10,864 2172 80
Add Issued during the year - -
Outstanding al the end of the year 10 864 2172 B0 10,864 217280
¢ Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate Preference shares in the Compan
e ot 57 Hiarch 2022
Mumber of shares % of holding in Number of shares % of holding in the
the class class
Class A
Paolycab India Limited 281477 100 291177 100
Class A1
Palycab India Limited 1,451 100 14561 100
Class A2
Palycab India Limited 4363 100 4353 100
Class A3
Palycab India Limited 13236 100 13.236 100
Class B
Paolycab India Limited 10.864 100 10 864 100
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13

1

e

16.

-
o

d Compulsary Canvertiblo Debenture (CC0)
The CCOs shall ¢ a cumulative coupon rate of 0
CCDs until the ds
therenl into Fouity Sha

e Retained carnings

y per annum on the face value of the CCDs (' Cowpan') whick shall be pay,
conversion of the CCD, or end of the CCO Tenure, whickever is earber. Each CCD shall have a tenure of 7 (1
es GLO-shel be converted into Equily Shares in the ratie of 1.9 a1 anylime priar fo the CCO Tenure

on & annual b

The €

years trom the dite of i

upan shall bo apphicable on and friom the date of issuance of the

uance The CCOe shall not have any voling nghls untit cony,

RGN

Retaned aamings are ihe prafits that the Company has eamed 1l date less any tansfers 1o Ceneral Reserve dvidends or olher distnbutions 1o shateholdess Retained cariings incledes re-measurement lessi{gain) on delined
benelit plans, nel of taxes that will not be reclassified to slatement of profil and loss. Refained earnings is a free reserve available 1o the Company

Opening balance
Add: Prefit{Loss) during the year
less, Transition impact of Ind AS 116

(3,72,340.07)
(26,692 B7)

(3,49,032.94)

(2.41.532 88)
(80,807 19)

13,22,340.07)

Borrowings
BD”DWIHQS- current

At Amortised Cost
Unsecured
Loan Fram Holding Company

5200000
52,000.00

. fun 000)
31-Mar-22

45,500.00
45,500.00

. Trade payables

At Amortised Cost
Total outstending dues of micro and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Clher than acceplances
Trade payablas - Others (Refer note below)

2 in 000)
31-Mar-22

2,390.39
2,390.39

Notes:-

{a) Others includes amount pay
the reporting date.

(b} For ions on the C

to vendors, employe

y's liquidity risk management processes: Refer note 31

{c) There are no unbilled payables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule as below,

(d} Trade Payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 23

Qutstanding for following pe:

ds from due date of payment

liability and accrual of expenses that are expected to be settled in the Company's normal operaling cycle or due 1o be settied within twelve months from

More than 3 years

(i) MEME : x s
(i} Others 5
Acceptances - "
Cther than acceptances 165.65 165.65
(i) Digputed dues - MSME - - 2
() Dispuled dues - Others = =
- 165.65 - - 165.65
As at 31 March 22
Mot Due Outstanding for following perieds from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yoars More than 3 years
(i) MSME - - 5
(i} Others -
Acceptances -
Other than acceplances 1.204.30 1.186.08 2,300 39
() Disputed dues - MSME E: = E
(i} Disputed dues - Others - - -
1,204.30 - 1,186.08 2,390.38
Other financial liabilities - Current % in 000
At Amortised Cost
Interest accrued but not due 4,390 B2 719.89
4,380.82 719.89
. Other liabilities
Other liabilities - Current % in 000
31-Mar-22
Advance from cuslomers 147013 613017
Other payables and salary payable 767821 587777
Other statutory dues
Employee Recoveries and Employer Confributions 7488 533.87
Taxes Payable (Other than Income t1ax) 345.51 B84 62
9,568.73 13,426.43

. Provisions

Provisions - Non-current

Pravision for employee benefits (Refer note 22)
Gratuity

Provisions - Current

Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 22)
Gratuity

¥ in 000
s T

1,203.00 6,614.00
1,203.00 6,614.00
¥ in 000
31-Mar-23
94.00 1,126.00
94,00 1,126.00
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

Revenue from operations

(Z in 000)
ded Year ended
31-Mar-22
Revenue on Sale of Products
Finished goods 18,137.03 18,032.30
18,137.03 18,032.30
Other operating revenue
Job work income - Service income 3,44572 4,148 .44
Total Revenue from contracts with customers 21,582.75 22,180.74
Total Revenue from operations 21,582.75 22,180.74

(a) Trade receivables are usually non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms up to 80 days. Evaluation is made as per the terms of the
contract i.e. if the Company does not retain any risk and rewards or control over the financial assets, then the entity derecognises such assets upon

transfer of financial assets under such arrangement with the banks.

(b) As on 31 March 2023, 3 customers contributed more than 10% each to the Total Revenue from operations,

Other income

(% in 000)
ded Year ended
: 31-Mar-22
Miscellaneous income 11,033.93 5232
11,033.93 52.32
Cost of materials consumed ( in 000)
ded Year ended
: 31-Mar-22
Inventories at the beginning of the period 20.12 1,993.03
Add: Purchases 3,974.84 9,037.74
3,994.96 11,030.77
Less: Inventories at the end of the period 16.14 2012
3,978.82 11,010.65
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress (% in 000)
ded Year ended
31-Mar-22
Inventory at the beginning of the period
Finished goods 4,283.32 3,995.35
Stock-in-trade 950.45 382,76
5,233.77 4,378.11
Inventory at the end of the period
Finished goods 715.60 4 283.32
Stock-in-trade 278.51 950.45
994.11 5,233.77
Changes in Inventories 4,239.66 (855.66)
Employee benefits expense
(% in 000)
ded Year ended
3 31-Mar-22
Salaries, wages and bonus 9,949.62 36,925.01
Contribution to provident and other funds 596.65 6,514.97
Staff welfare expense 895.35 789.13
11,441.62 44,229.11
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22. Employee benefits expense

Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans
(A) Defined Benefit plan

Gratuity Valuation - As per actuary

In respect of Gratuity, the Company makes annual contribution to the employee group gratuity scheme of the Life Insurance Corpaoration of India,
funded defined benefits plan for qualified employees. The scheme provided for lump sum payments to vested employees al retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess
of six months. Vesting occurs upen completion of five years of service. The Company has provided for gratuity based on the acluarial valuation done
as per Project Unit Credit Method.

Defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks such as

(i) Interest rate risk
A fallin the discount rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the
discount rate generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on Ihe duration of asset.

(ii) Salary Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the
salary of the members more than assumed level will increase the plan's liability,

(iii} Investment Risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the
end of the reporting period on government bonds, If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan
in India, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments.

(iv) Asset Liability Matching Risk
The plan faces the ALM risk as to the matching cash flow. Since the plan is invested in lines of Rule 101 of Income Tax Rules, 1962, this
generally reduces ALM risk.

(v) Mortality risk
Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for life time and payable till retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk. If actual
mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumption than the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no
condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cashflow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of
the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

(vi) Concentration Risk
Plan is having a concentration risk as all the assets are invested with the insurance company and a default will wipe out all the assets. Although
probability of this is very less as insurance companies have to follow regulatory guidelines.

(vii) Variability in withdrawal rates
If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption then the gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The
impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

(viiii) Regulatory Risk
Gratuity Benefit must comply with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended up-to-date). There is a risk of change in
the regulations requiring higher gratuity payments,

A separale trust fund is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax
Rules, 1962,

The Company operates a defined benefit plan, viz., gratuity for its employees. Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least
five years of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with an
insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of defined obligation were carried out as at 31 March, 2023 an external
independent fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost were
measured using the projected unit credit method.
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22. Employee benefits expense

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the funded status and

amounts recognized in the balance sheet for gratuity

Statement of profit and loss

Net employee benefits expense recognised in profit or loss: (% in 000)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Current service cost 32.00 1,021.00
Net interest cost 169.00 417.00
Past service cost # =
Net benefits expense 201.00 1,438.00
Net remeasurement (gain)/ loss on defined benefit plans recognised in Other comprehensive income for the year: (% in DOO)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Actuarial (gain) /loss on obligations 88.00 2,269.00
(Return)/Loss on plan assets, excluding interest income (17.00) 28.00
Net (Income)/Expense for the year recognized in OC| 71.00 2,297.00
Balance sheet
Benefits liability (% in 000)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-23 31 Mar 22
Present value of defined benefit obligation 1,427.00 7.845.00
Fair value of plan assets 130.00 105.00
Plan liability 1,297.00 7,740.00
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows: (¥ in DOO)
Year ended Year ended
Opening defined benefit obligation 7,845.00 7,670.00
Interest cost 177.00 424.00
Current service cost 32.00 1,021.00
Past service cost e o
Benefits paid (1,643.00) (3,439.00)
Liability transferred out (4,896.00) =
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations
Due to change in demographics assumptions (119.00) -
Due to change in financial assumptions (86.00) (174.00)
Due to experience 117.00 2,443.00
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,427.00 7,845.00
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: (% in 000)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-23 31 Mar 22
Opening fair value of plan assets 105.00 101.00
Interest Income 8.00 7.00
Contribution by employer 1,677.00 3,464.00
Benefits paid (1,643.00) (3,439.00)
Actuarial gains (17.00) (28.00)
Closing fair value of plan assets 130.00 105.00

The Company expects to contribute 500 thousands to gratuity in the next year (31 March 2022: ¥ 1000 thousands).
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22. Employee benefits expense
Current & non-current bifurcation of provision for gratuity as per actuarial valuation is as follows:

(Z in 000)

Year ended Year ended

31-Mar-23 31 Mar 22
Nan-current 1,203.00 5.614.00
Current 94.00 1,126.00
The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Year ended Year ended

31-Mar-23 31 Mar 22
Investment with insurer 100.00% 100.00%
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Company's plans are shown below:

Year ended Year ended

31-Mar-23 31 Mar 22
Discount rate 7.2% 6% p.a.
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6% 56% p.a.
Employee turnover 10% 15% p.a,
Salary escalation 7% p.a. 7% p.a.
Weighted average duration 6 years 4.5 years

. . IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012 - 14

Mortality rate during employment (Uit) (i)

The average expected future service as at 31 March 2023 is 6 years (31 March 2022 - 4.5 years).

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,
such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over
which the obligation is to be settled.

A guantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2023 is as shown below

Sensitivity analysis are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and
changes in some of the assumptions may be co-related. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet.

Sensitivity analysis (T in 000)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-23 31 Mar 22

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions

Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting +10 +459
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting -12 -423
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase +12 +416
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase -10 -459
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover Negligible +31
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover Negligible -33

(B) Other Defined Benefit and contribution Plans

Provident Fund

The Company contribute towards Provident Fund to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company contributes towards Provident Fund
managed by Central Government and has recognised ¥ 556.10 thousands (31st March 2022 - 2 876.55 thousands) for provident fund contributions
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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23. Finance cost

(2 in D0O)
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Interest expense on financial liabilities al amortised cost 5,857.83 3,834,238
Other borrowing costs - Bank Charges 158.64 =
6,016.47 3,834.38
24. Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Z in 000)
ded Year ended
31-Mar-22
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer note 3) 52.34 66.31
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4) 22,809.09 2247313
22,861.42 22,539.44
25. Other expenses (2 in 000)
ended Year ended
: 31-Mar-22
Cansumption of stores and spares 1.591.17 245.90
Rent 2,262.48 2,231.48
Rates and taxes 162.14 77574
Insurance = 23,60
Repairs and maintenance
Others 45.47 80.85
Advertising and sales promotion and round off 247.40 137.17
Travelling and conveyance 1,306.98 1,164.49
Communication Cost 543.34 368.42
Legal and professional fees 1,966.42 15,296 35
Freight & forwarding expenses = 52.89
Research and Development expenses 809.59 -
Payment to auditor (Refer note (a) below) 265.00 230.00
Bad Debts 2,955.88 13,828.19
Less: Impairment provision written back during the year (2,277.32) (13,393.67)
678.56 434 52
Miscellaneous Expenses 964.00 1,240.92
10,842.56 22,282.33
Notes:
(a) Payments to auditor:
ded Year ended
31-Mar-22
As auditor
(i) Audit fee 200.00 150.00
(ii) Certification fees 65.00 -
(iii}) Other Matters - 80.00
265.00 230.00
26. Earnings per share
(a) Basic Earnings per share
ended Year ended
: 31-Mar-22
Profit/(Loss) after taxation Zin 000 A (26,692.87) (83,104.19)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share * Number B 1,01,956 1,01,956
Earnings per shares - Basic (one equity share of ¥ 100 each) ¥ per share (A/B) (261.81) (815.10)

(b) Diluted Earnings per share

The Company has outstanding Compulsorily convertible preference shares and Compulsorily convertible debentures as at 31 March 2023 and 31
March 2022. Since the Company has net loss for the current and previous year, the effect of these potential equity shares will be anti-diluted,

hence Diluted Earnings per share is considered same as Basic Earnings per share.
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27. Contingent liabilities and commitments
Ihere are no Contingent Laibililies and Capital Commitments as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

28. Related party disclosure
The transactions wilh related parties are made on terms equivalent lo those Lhal prevail in arm's length transactions. Oulstanding balances al the year-end are
unsecured and selllement oceurs in cash or credit as per the terms of the arrangement,

(a) Related Parties
(i) Holding Company:
Polycab India Limited
(i) HKey management personnel

Ajay Gupta Director
Bindimgnavile Seshadri Praveen Director
Manita Carmen A, Gonsalves Additional Director (Appointed w.e.f. 27 March 2023)

(b) Transactions with Holding Company during the year ended 21 March 2023
(i}  Baorrowings - Intercorporate deposites taken - Rs 6,500 thousands (Previous year 31-Mar-22 Rs. 45 500 thousand)
{iy Compulsary Convertible Debenture (CCD) issued - Nil {Previous Year 31-Mar-22 Rs. 78,070 thousands)
(i) Interest Expenses on Loan - Rs 5,850 thousands (Previous Year 31-Mar-22 Rs. 2,904 50 thousands)
{iv) Interest Expenses on Compulsory Converlible Debenture (CCD) - Rs 7 82 thousands (Previous Year 31-Mar-22 Rs. 5.84 thousands)
(v} Rent expense - Rs, 2,669.72 thousands (Previous year 31-Mar-22 Rs. 667 .43 thousand)
(vi} Purchase expenses - Rs.2,479 26 thousands (Previous year 31-Mar-22 Rs. Nil)
(vil) Reimbursement of Expenses - Rs. 5783.478 thousands (Previous Year 31-Mar-22 Rs. Nil)

(c) Closing Balance as at 31 March 2023
(iy Baorrowings- Intercorporate deposites- Rs 52,000 thousands (Previous year Rs, 45,500 lhousand)
(i) Interest payable on Loan & CCD - Rs 4,380.81 thousands (Previous year Rs. 719.31 thousand)
(i} Trade Payables - Rs.4896.31 thousands (Previous Year Nil)
{iv) Compulsory Converlible Debentures (CCD) - Rs, 78,070 thousands {Previous year Rs. 78,070 thousands)

(d) Transactions with KMP:
(i) Borrowings- Transactions during the year

31-Mar-22
Giridhar Krishna Mamidipudi
Opening Balance - 3,962.60
Taken during the year - 411.23
Repaid during the year - 4,373.83
Closing Balance - g
Mohan Gopalakrishna
Opening Balance - 375.02
Taken during the year - -
Repaid during the year - 375.02
Closing Balance - 2

(i) Remuneration paid for the year ended and outstanding as on:

Giridhar Krishna Mamidipudi - 2,956.80
Mohan Gopalakrishna - 556.80
Ajay Gupta 5,993.69 1,756.80

6,993.69 5,270.40

Note: As the liabilities for gratuity and leave encashmen! are provided on actuarial basis for the Company as a whole, the amounts peraining to the directors and
KMP are not included above.

29 (A) Segment reporting
The Company is predominantly engaged in the business of facilitate development and maintenance of business and software applications on all popular and mainframe
and minicomputer platforms and to carry on the work of development of software and related services in all kinds. As such there are no separate reportable segments,
as per the Ind-AS 108 on Operating Segment.

The Company’s operations are mainly confined in India. The Company does not have material earnings from business segment outside India. As such, there are no
reportable geographical segments,

Information about Major Customer: Revenue from operations for the year include Rs. 9492.58 thousands (Previous Year Rs 7,491.85 thousands) from three
customers (Previous Year: two customer) having more than 10% of the total revenue.
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29 (B) Additional Regulatory Information

Ratios Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-22

Current Ratio (in times) Total Current Assets Total Current Liabilities 014 025
Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) Debt consists of borrowings and — Total Equity

lease liabilities 2 4.41 1.18
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) Earning for Debt Service = Net Debt service = Interest and lease

Profit after laxes + Non-cash payments + Principal repayments

operating expenses + Interest +
Other non-cash adjustments

Return on Equity Ratio (in %) Prafit for the year less Preference  Average lolal equily

dividend (if any) -226% -216%
Inventory turnover ratio (in times) Cost of Goods Sold Average Inventory 2.62 1.75
Trade Receivables turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average trade receivables 3.53 475
Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Net credil purchases Average trade payables 3 1.27
MNet capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue from operations Average Working capital -0.38 -0.47
Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revenue from operations -82% -363%
Return on Capital employed (in %) Profit before tax and finance costs Capital employed = Net worth + -176% -200%

Lease liabilities + Deferred tax
liabilities
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30.

A)

3.

Financial Instruments and Fair Value Measurement
Financial Instruments

Fair value measurements

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives, mutual funds efc. at fair value al each Balance sheet date. Fair value s the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

{a) Inthe principal market for the assel or liability, or
{b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advanlageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest,

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, to provide an indication
about the reliability of inputs used in delermining fair value, the Company has classified its financial statemenls into three levels preseribed under the accounting
standard as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole,

*  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is uncbservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the assets
or liability and the level of fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are
reasonable approximations of fair values;

Carrying value Fair value
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-22
Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 5,357.02 759368 5357.02 7,593.68
Cash and cash equivalents 1,412.96 250.52 1,412.96 250,52
Other financial assets - 140.00 - 140.00
6,769.98 7,984.20 6,769.98 7,984.20

Financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings - long lerm including current maturities and short term 52,000.00 45,500.00 52,000.00 45,500.00
Trade payables 165.65 2,390.39 16565 2,390.39
Other financial liabilities 4,390.82 719.89 4,390.82 719.89

56,556.47 48,610.28 56,556.47 48,610.28

(a) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, shori-term borrowings, loans to related party, loans to employees,

short term security deposit and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

(b} The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing

parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale.

Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and
other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL investments and enters into derivative
transactions.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors of the Company has formed a Risk Management Committee to periodically
review the risk management policy of the Company so thal the management manages the risk through properly defined machanism. The Risk Management Committee's
focus is to foresee the unpredictability and minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The Company's overall risk management
procedures to minimise the potential adverse effects of financial market on the Company's performance are as follows:




Silvan Innovation Labs Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in markel prices. Market risk comprises three

lypes of risk. interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commadity risk. Financial instruments affecled by market risk include
loans and borrowings, deposils, FVTPL invesiments and derivalive financial instruments.

(i

(i}

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates
The Company is also exposed lo the risk of changes in market interest rates refates due to its investments in mutual fund units in overnight funds.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. The Campany enters into interest rale swaps for long
term foreign currency borrowings, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and variable rate interest amounts
calculated by reference lo an agreed-upon notional principal amount. At 31 March 2022, 100% of the Company's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the

impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings,
as follows:

Ex posure to interest rate risk dec::acsr:?iet';asis Effect on profit before
(Principal amount of loan) tax
points

31st March 2023 52,000

Increase +200 {1,040.00)

Decrease -200 1,040.00
31st March 2023 45,500

Increase 200 (910.00)

Decrease (200} 810.00

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company's borrowings in foreign currency. The Company does not have any receivable and payable in Fareign
currency as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022
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31. Financial Risk Management Objectives And Policies

(B) Credit risk

(c

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or cuslomer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily irade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange lransactions and other financial instiuments,

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties thal have sufficient credit rating. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties
are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amangst the counterparties. Credil risk has always been managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limils and continuously manitering the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credil terms in the normal course of
business. On account of adoption of Ind AS 108, the Company uses expected credit loss model lo assess the impairment loss or gain, The Company has applied
Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment losses on trade receivables. ECL has been computed as a percentage of revenue on
the basis of Company's historical data of delay in collection of amounts due from customers and default by the customers alang with management's eslimales,

The Company has sold without recourse trade receivable under channel finance arrangement for providing credit to its dealers. Evaluation is made as per the terms of the
contract i.e. if the Company does not retain any risk and rewards or control over the financial assets, then the entity derecognises such assets upon transfer of financial
assets under such arrangement with the banks. Derecognition does not result in significant gain { loss fo the Company in the Statement of profit and loss,

The Company closely monitors ils customers who are going through financial stress and assesses aclions such as change in payment terms, discounting of receivables
with institutions on no-recourse basis, recognition of revenue on colleclion basis etc., depending on severity of each case. The collections pattern from the customers in
the current period does nol indicale stress beyond what has been factored while computing the allowance for expected credit losses.

Other financial assets
The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with counterparties that have sufficient credit rating. The Company's exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties
are conlinuously monitored and the aggregate value of lransactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties.

Credit risk arising from investment in mutual funds, derivative financial instruments and other balances with banks is limited and there is no collateral held against these
because the counterparties are banks and recognised financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by the international credit rating agencies

Liguidity risk
The Company's principle sources of liquidily are cash and cash equivalents and the cash flow that is generated from operations. The Company believes that the working
capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements,

Further, the Company manages ils liquidity risk in a manner so as lo meet its normal financial obligations without any significant delay or stress. Such risk is managed
through ensuring operational cash flow while at the same time maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents position. The management has arranged for diversified
funding sources and adopted a policy of managing assels with liquidity in mind and monitoring fulure cash flows and liquidity on a regular basis. Surplus funds not
immediately required are invested in certain financial assets (including mutual funds) which provide flexibility to liquidate at short notice and are included in current
investments and cash equivalents, Besides, it generally has certain undrawn credit facilities which can be accessed as and when required, which are reviewed
periodically.

The Company has developed appropriate internal control systems and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash
flows and availability of alternative sources for additional funding, if required.

Maturity Analysis
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments.

31st March 2023 31st March 2022
> equal to = equal to
1 year SV yenr 1 year Total
Borrowings 52,000.00 52,000.00 45,500.00 % 45,500.00
Other financial liabilities 4,380.82 - 4,380.82 719.89 - 719.89
Trade payables 165.65 - 165.65 2,390.39 - 2,390.39
56,556.47 - 56,556.47 48,610.29 - 48,610.29

32. Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capilal includes issued equity capital, securities premium and all other equity reserves attribulable to the equity
shareholders, The primary objective is to maximise the shareholders value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of the Company. The Company determines
the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic invesiment plans, The funding requirements are met through equity, operating cash
flows generated and external borrowings.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustmenis in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

The capital structure is gaverned by policies approved by the Board of Directors and monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net

debt,
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2 31-Mar-22
Debt 52,000.00 45.,500.00
Equity 11,792.58 38,485.45
Total capital 63,792.58 83,985.45
Debt 52,000.00 45,500.00
Gearing ratio 81.51% 54.18%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached lo the interest-
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. As on 31 March 2023 the company had borrowings only from its holding company

No changes were made in lhe objectives, policies or processes for managing capilal during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022

33, "The Board of Direclors of the Company at their meeting held on 12 Oclober 2022 has approved the Scheme of Amalgamation amongst the Company and its Helding
Company viz. "Polycab India Limited"”, on a geing concern basis, The Appointed date of the Scheme is 1 April 2022 or such other dale as may be approved by NCLT or any
other appropriate authority. The Scheme will be given effect on receipt of requisite regulatory approvals, on fulliiment of conditions precedent therein and filing of such
approvals with the ROC, As on dale of adoption of these financial statements by the Board, approval of the scheme of arrangement from NCLT is awaited, accordingly
accounts have been prepared without giving any effects of the said Scheme of Arrangement.”

34. Events after the reporting period
Na significant adjusting event occurred between the balance sheet date and date of the approval of these financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Company
requiring adjustment or disclosure.
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